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STATE OF NEW YORK
MOUNTAIN LAKES REGIONAL
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES
Proceeding on a Application for a Certificate of
Need For Expansion of Operating Territory, for
Fort Ann Rescue Squad.
C.O.N. PUBLIC HEARING
DATE: February 23, 2026
TIME: 5:03 p-m. to 5:16 p.m.
LOCATION: Essex County Public Safety
Building
702 Stowersville Road
Lewis, New York

BEFORE: VICKY CAMPBELL, Chair

Reported by Danielle Christian
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2 (The hearing commenced at 5:03 p.m.)
3 COURT REPORTER: We"re on the record.
4 The time is now Five O three.
5 CHAIR CAMPBELL: We"ll now move into
6 the portion of the C.O.N. Committee report.
7 MS. TREANOR: So, we had a hearing on
8 -- a public hearing on February 3rd. And so we had
9 deemed it complete. The hearing was February 3rd.
10 And we are now ready to do the votes. So, whatever
11 we need -- so we need to do the excuses of people who
12 have conflict.
13 CHAIRMAN CAMPBELL: Yep, we need to
14 declare conflicts.
15 MS. TREANOR: The rest of that, yeah.
16 CHAIR CAMPBELL: So, we"ll do that
17 first then.
18 MS. TREANOR: Yeah. We didn"t have --
19 so we didn"t have a formal committee meeting. Mostly
20 because the only person who really responded to me
21 was either Patty or Paul. And they were at the same
22 time, so it never -- | could never piece this
23 together as one whole piece so we could kind of get
24 our ducks in a row. But, I think that the hearing
25 was pretty straight forward. And the hearing report
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2 went up on the Fort Drum website so that you had that
3 to look at. And, so | think that we"re ready to vote
4 on it.

5 CHAIR CAMPBELL: Okay. Is there a

6 motion set forth by the Committee?

7 MS. TREANOR: There"s a -- yeah. So,
8 I will do a forwarding motion by the Committee to

9 vote on the application for expansion -- expansion,
10 right? Expansion of operating territory, a C.O.N.

11 for expansion of operating territory.

12 CHAIR CAMPBELL: And this is a motion
13 to approve?

14 MS. TREANOR: Pardon?

15 CHAIR CAMPBELL: The forwarded motion
16 is to approve?

17 MS. TREANOR: To approve --

18 CHAIR CAMPBELL: To approve the vote?
19 MS. TREANOR: No, there"s a -- there’s
20 a way we do this vote that"s very different. So, the
21 yes is no and the no is yes, right?
22 MS. BASHAW: So, I think you hit the
23 nail on the head. 1 think the first thing is people
24 say who they are and if they have a conflict, right?
25 Then, we can also discuss this, we just can"t bring
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2 any new information to the -- to us because the
3 public hearing has taken place. But we can discuss
4 this before we vote on it, which probably is a good
5 idea, I think.
6 CHAIR CAMPBELL: Correct.
7 MS. BASHAW: So, I would first see if
8 there®s any conflicts, | guess when Zach comes back.
9 MR. MINOGUE: We were -- we were
10 discussing this before the meeting and we pulled up O
11 six O six. And, it says in O six O six, the REMSCO
12 shall make its determination by a roll call ballot of
13 members --
14 MS. BASHAW: Right.
15 MR. MINOGUE: -- present to accept or
16 reject the recommendation committee. The motion must
17 be made in the form of an approval of the
18 application.
19 MS. BASHAW: Right.
20 MR. MINOGUE: So, 1°m okay with that.
21 CHAIR CAMPBELL: Oh, good job.
22 MR. MINOGUE: Sometimes, it is
23 backwards when we do it, but. Like, if there -- if
24 we don"t -- 1f the motion from the Committee was not
25 to approve it, then it would be backwards to that.
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But, I don"t really know --

MS. TREANOR: I don"t think we got

that far.

CHAIR CAMPBELL: I don’t know 20:27
MP3

MR. MINOGUE: 1 don’t think we made a
recommendation. So, | think we need -- right. Let

see 1T there 1s any conflict.

CHAIR CAMPBELL: Okay. So, we"ll go
through and declare conflicts at this point. Kody?

MR. THOMPSON: No conflict.

CHAIR CAMPBELL: Patty?

MS. BASHAW: 1 have no conflict.

CHAIR CAMPBELL: Scott?

MR. HARWOOD: No conflict.

CHAIR CAMPBELL: Storm?

MS. TREANOR: No conflict.

CHAIR CAMPBELL: Paul?

MR. ZINN: No conflict.

CHAIR CAMPBELL: Ashley?

MS. RIVERS: No conflict.

CHAIR CAMPBELL: Caleb?

MR. WHITE: No conflict.

CHAIR CAMPBELL: Mark?
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2 MR. SPIEZ10: No conflict.

3 CHAIR CAMPBELL: Adrienne?

4 MS. HAMILTON: No conflict.

5 CHAIR CAMPBELL: Craig?

6 MR. DUMAS: No conflict.

7 CHAIR CAMPBELL: Jody?

8 MR. WHITNEY: No conflict.

9 CHAIR CAMPBELL: Vicky? No conflict.
10 Tammy, we’re doing a roll call for conflict of

11 interest for the C.O.N. for forwarding expansion.

12 MS. TROMBLEY: 1 have no conflict.

13 CHAIR CAMPBELL: Thank you. No

14 conflict.

15 MS. BASHAW: Can I just ask, because I
16 just don*"t know who the two people in the back are --
17 or three people in the back. There we go. Three.

18 MR. WALLACE: I -- 1 am Chauncey, 1™m
19 the assistant -- 1"m Chauncey Wallace. [1"m the
20 assistant chief of the Fort Ann Rescue Squad.
21 MS. BASHAW: Okay.
22 MR. NOBLE: Thomas Noble, chief of
23 Fort Ann Rescue Squad.
24 MS. NOBLE: Hailey Noble, deputy
25 chief.
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2 MS. BASHAW: Fort Ann, Fort Ann and --
3 MS. NOBLE: Fort Ann.
4 MR. NOBLE: Fort Ann.
5 MS. BASHAW: Okay.
6 MR. SPIEZI0O: Again, it"s also when we
7 looked at O six O six earlier, so the appro -- based
8 on what it says there, the approval has got to be by
9 a majority of not just the people here, of the
10 potential seats on the council.
11 CHAIR CAMPBELL: On the council.
12 MS. BASHAW: Correct.
13 MR. SPIEZIO: So it has to be eleven
14 affirmative votes.
15 CHAIR CAMPBELL: Correct. Because
16 there"s twenty seats on the council, so it has to be
17 eleven affirmative votes to get the majority.
18 MS. BASHAW: And how many members do
19 we have here today?
20 MR. SPIEZI0: Thirteen.
21 MS. TREANOR: Fourteen. Thirteen,
22 fourteen?
23 CHAIR CAMPBELL: It would be fourteen.
24 Fourteen members.
25 UNIDENTIFIED MALE SPEAKER 2: Fifteen?
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2 Fourteen?
3 MS. BASHAW: 1 just want to make sure
4 we"ve got all the ducks in a row here. So I"1l go
5 first. So did everybody get a chance to look at not
6 only, really, the public hearing, and then the public
7 hearing report that we got? Did everybody get a
8 chance to look at that? Okay.
9 So first -- and -- and please take no
10 offense to anybody that might have given input.
11 First, 1 was a little surprised, | guess, by the tone
12 of some of the -- what"s the word I want? Not
13 evidence, but commentary to the -- the application.
14 Really, our only job here is to approve need for it,
15 period. Right? We don®"t need to know if somebody”s
16 working with a C.O.N. or not, or, you know, 1 went to
17 this area and -- and, you know, we just need to show
18 a need. So I just want to make sure that when we
19 looked at the -- quite frankly, the notes of the
20 meeting, that that"s what you came away with, whether
21 or not you thought there was need for this
22 application. Okay?
23 So that"s really my two cents on it. 1
24 didn"t know if anybody else had any other thoughts to
25 what came out from the public hearing. Really?
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2 Okay -
3 CHAIR CAMPBELL: Okay. Anybody else
4 have any discussion?
5 MR. MINOGUE: I have some thoughts
6 just from reviewing some stuff, if the group wouldn®t
7 mind taking a moment and listening to what -- what 1
8 have to say, even though 1"m a new member on the --
9 the council. 1"ve looked over the application stuff,
10 the public hearing notes. While 1 didn"t read
11 through them all verbatim, 1 did skim through enough
12 of them to look for issues or things that 1 -- that
13 stood out to me.
14 A couple of things stood out. 1I-°d
15 like to kind of echo what Patty said. Now, we"re --
16 we’re here to determine iIf there’s -- if Fort Ann has
17 demonstrated that there"s a need. 1 know that there
18 were previously issues regarding their application.
19 One of the -- one of the key points being the
20 territory they were requesting for the first
21 application versus the second application. Looks
22 like the second application has resolved that by
23 specific -- specifying just 100 Park Street, Glen
24 Falls, New York, which was a -- which 1 know
25 previously was a bone of contention.
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2 Secondly, I -- 1 -- 1 noticed some of
3 these -- one of the letters of opposition from the

4 ambulance, and 1 know previously there have been

5 concerns about the staffing, which I"m not here to --
6 to mention or talk about. But I will say that I do

7 know from my -- from -- from what 1 have noticed is

8 that 1 see Fort Ann somewhat regularly up in

9 Plattsburgh transporting patients, while the other

10 C.O.N. holders 1 have not seen up there.

11 I think that ultimately just by

12 reading things over that a need has been established,
13 and I know that that"s not just my thought by looking
14 at the hearing officer”s report. Lee Burns, who was
15 the hearing officer, also determined or felt that

16 Fort Ann showed that there was a need and that they
17 have a plan to fill that need. 1 know that there are
18 other issues that people have mentioned during some
19 time or some conversations, and I don"t think that"s
20 issues for us to determine for this process.
21 Our -- our issue -- our -- our job
22 here is solely to determine if there is a need and
23 whether to grant the certificate of need expansion to
24 Fort Ann. And while -- while there may be some other
25 issues that people have, 1 think there are other
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avenues for that. So in my thought, 1 feel that a
need has been demonstrated.

CHAIR CAMPBELL: Does anybody else
have anything they"d like to discuss? So we have a
motion, forwarded motion, correct, from the
Committee. And we"ve had a second, it comes as a
seconded motion. Are you -- do you need a second on
the motion?

MS. TREANOR: Yeah. Oh, no, it comes
forward as seconded motion, correct?

CHAIR CAMPBELL: It comes forwarded as
a seconded, correct. So now we just need to do a
roll call vote, correct?

MS. TREANOR: Right.

CHAIR CAMPBELL: Any discussion, or
just do a roll call vote.

MR. COLE: And to clarify that the
roll call vote is to vote in favor of granting the
expansion, correct?

CHAIR CAMPBELL: Correct.

MS. TREANOR: Yes.

MR. COLE: Just for clarification and
so iIt’s on the record. Thank you.

CHAIR CAMPBELL: Thank you. So one
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2 last time, does anybody have any other discussion?
3 Okay. We"ll move into the vote. Zach?
4 MR. BOUCHER: Brandon?
5 MR. MINOGUE: In favor.
6 MR. BOUCHER: Storm?
7 MS. TREANOR: Yes.
8 MR. BOUCHER: Tammy?
9 MS. TROMBLEY: Yes.
10 MR. BOUCHER: Patty?
11 MS. BASHAW: Yes.
12 MR. BOUCHER: Jody?
13 MR. WHITNEY: Yes.
14 MR. BOUCHER: Craig?
15 MR. DUMAS: Yes.
16 MR. BOUCHER: Scott?
17 MR. HARWOOD: Yes.
18 MR. BOUCHER: Caleb?
19 MR. WHITE: Yes.
20 MR. BOUCHER: Ashley?
21 MS. RIVERS: Yes.
22 MR. BOUCHER: Adrienne?
23 MS. HAMILTON: 1"m abstaining.
24 MR. BOUCHER: Mark?
25 MR. SPIEZIO: Yes.
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2 MR. BOUCHER: Paul?

3 MR. ZINN: Yes.

4 MR. BOUCHER: And Vicky?

5 CHAIR CAMPBELL: Yes.

6 MR. BOUCHER: So one, two, three,

7 four, five, six, seven, eight, nine ten, eleven

8 twelve thirteen -- and Kody?

9 MR. THOMPSON: Yes.

10 MR. BOUCHER: Thirteen yes and one

11 abstain.

12 CHAIR CAMPBELL: Okay. The motion®s
13 been carried to grant the expansion of territory for
14 Fort Ann. The appropriate letters will be sent. Is
15 there anything else on that part of it? From the

16 stenographer?

17 MS. TREANOR: It passes, right?

18 CHAIR CAMPBELL: Yes, it passed,

19 sorry. It passed with thirteen --
20 MS. TREANOR: Yeses.
21 CHAIR CAMPBELL: Yes and one abstain.
22 MS. TREANOR: Thirteen yeses i1n favor
23 of the expansion and one abstain.
24 CHAIR CAMPBELL: Correct.
25 MS. TREANOR: So we will -- once we
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get the hear -- the transcript, we can send that to
the state?

CHAIR CAMPBELL: Correct.

MS. TREANOR: And that will take care
of that.

COURT REPORTER: Off the record?

Okay. Off the record.
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2 STATE OF NEW YORK

3 I, DANIELLE CHRISTIAN, do hereby certify that the

4 foregoing was reported by me, In the cause, at the time
5 and place, as stated iIn the caption hereto, at Page 1

6 hereof; that the foregoing typewritten transcription

7 consisting of pages 1 through 15, is a true record of all
8 proceedings had at the hearing.

9 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have hereunto

10 subscribed my name, this the 17th day of March, 2026.
11

12 DANIELLE CHRISTIAN, Reporter

13
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